6

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT

Administrative Law Judge H. W. Funderburk, Jr.

ALC Case No. 17-ALJ-04-0507-AP
Appellate Case No. 2018-001293

RECEIVED
JUN 28 2019
SC Court of Appeals
RESPONDENT,

JAKARTA DESHON YOUNG, #276572,

v.

SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS,

APPELLANT.

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

**SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT
OF CORRECTIONS**
Kensley B. Evans
Deputy General Counsel
Office of General Counsel
SC Bar Number: 102215
South Carolina Department of Corrections
Post Office Box 21787
Columbia, South Carolina 29221
(803) 896-8508
ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF ISSUE ON APPEAL

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT IMPROPERLY RULED THAT RESPONDENT'S DRUG TRAFFICKING CONVICTION UNDER S.C. CODE ANN. § 44-53-370(E)(2) IS ONE THAT IS ELIGIBLE FOR PAROLE, EXTENDED WORK RELEASE, AND SUPERVISED FURLOUGH.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This matter is before the Court pursuant to the appeal of the Department of Corrections. Respondent filed a Step One Grievance on June 28, 2017, claiming Appellant had incorrectly calculated his sentence. Appellant investigated and denied the grievance. Respondent filed a Step Two Grievance on July 18, 2017. This grievance was also investigated and denied. Respondent filed a Notice of Appeal in the Administrative Law Court on September 20, 2017. Thereafter, on June 20, 2018, the Honorable H. W. Funderburk, Jr. issued an order reversing and remanding the decision of the Department of Corrections. Pursuant to Administrative Law Court Rule 65, “[t]he decision of the Administrative Law Judge is a final decision and motion for reconsideration will not be considered.” Therefore, this appeal follows.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

S.C. Code Ann. § 1-23-610(B) provides the applicable standard of review:

The review of the administrative law judge's order must be confined to the record. The reviewing tribunal may affirm the decision or remand the case for further proceedings; or it may reverse or modify the decision if the substantive rights of the petitioner have been prejudiced because the finding, conclusion, or decision is:

- (a) in violation of constitutional or statutory provisions;
- (b) in excess of the statutory authority of the agency;
- (c) made upon unlawful procedure;
- (d) affected by other error of law;
- (e) clearly erroneous in view of the reliable, probative and substantial evidence on the whole record; or
- (f) arbitrary or capricious or characterized by abuse of discretion or clearly unwarranted exercise of discretion.

In an appeal of a final decision of an administrative agency, the standard of appellate review is whether the ALC's findings are supported by substantial evidence. S.C. Code Ann. § 1-23-610(B). "Substantial evidence" is evidence which, considering the record as a whole, would allow a reasonable mind to reach the same conclusion that administrative agency reached. *Hendley v. S.C. State Budget & Control Bd.*, 325 S.C. 413, 481 S.E.2d 159 (Ct. App. 1996). A reviewing court shall not substitute its own judgment for that of the ALC as to findings of fact, but it may reverse or modify decisions that are controlled by errors of law or that are clearly erroneous in view of the substantial evidence on the record as a whole. *Id.*

ARGUMENT

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT IMPROPERLY RULED THAT RESPONDENT'S DRUG TRAFFICKING CONVICTION UNDER S.C. CODE ANN. § 44-53-370(E)(2) IS ONE THAT IS ELIGIBLE FOR PAROLE, EXTENDED WORK RELEASE, AND SUPERVISED FURLOUGH.

On August 25, 2016, Respondent was sentenced to seven (7) years for Trafficking in Cocaine, more than ten (10) grams but less than twenty-eight (28) grams, second offense, pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 44-53-370(e)(2)(a)(2). *See* R. at p. 14 and 51. Appellant is also serving a concurrent eight (8) year sentence for manufacturing cocaine base, second offense, in violation of S.C. Code Ann. § 44-53-375 (B)(2). R. at p. 16 and 51.

On June 2, 2010, the Omnibus Crime Reduction and Sentencing Reform Act of 2010 went into effect. The Act amended portions of S.C. Code Ann. § 44-53-370 and § 44-53-375 by adding the following language to certain subsections dealing with manufacturing/distribution-level drug offenses:

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a person convicted and sentenced pursuant to this subsection for a first offense or second offense may have the sentence suspended and probation granted, and is eligible for parole, supervised furlough, community supervision, work release, work credits, education credits, and good conduct credits. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a person convicted and sentenced pursuant to this subsection for a third or subsequent offense in which all prior offenses were for possession of a controlled substance pursuant to subsection (A), may have the sentence suspended and probation granted and is eligible for parole, supervised furlough, community supervision, work release, work credits, education credits, and good conduct credits. In all other cases, the sentence must not be suspended nor probation granted.

This language was **not** added to any of the subsections dealing with trafficking-level offenses.

See S.C. Code Ann. § 44-53-370(e) and S.C. Code Ann. § 44-53-375(C).

The case of *Bolin v. S.C. Dep't of Corr.*, 415 S.C. 276, 282, 781 S.E.2d 914, 917 (Ct. App. 2016), *reh'g denied* (Feb. 24, 2016), held that the addition of the above-quoted language

to the manufacturing/distribution-level subsections signaled the legislature's intent to repeal S.C. Code Ann. § 24-13-100 (the "85% law") to the extent it conflicted with the amended portions of S.C. Code Ann. § 44-53-370 and -375. Accordingly, the *Bolin* court found that these offenses were no longer to be considered to be 85%, "no-parole" offenses. However, since the language discussed in *Bolin* was not added to the trafficking subsections of the drug statutes, *Bolin* has no application to convictions for trafficking.

Respondent's trafficking conviction falls under the 85% "no parole" statute because the offense is a Class A felony which carries a maximum sentence of thirty years. See S.C. Ann. Code § 44-53-375(e)(2)(a)(2) (stating that second-offense trafficking in cocaine, 10-28 grams, carries a sentence of five to thirty years); S.C. Code Ann. § 16-1-90 (defining Class A felonies); and S.C. Code Ann. § 24-13-100 and -150 (generally, stating that offenses carrying twenty years or more are 85% no-parole offenses).

Notwithstanding the above, in its order, the ALC used the following language from S.C. Code Ann. § 44-53-370(e)(7) to conclude that Respondent's offense was one that is eligible for parole, extended work release, or supervised furlough:

A person convicted and sentenced under this subsection to a mandatory term of imprisonment of twenty-five years, a mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of twenty-five years, or a mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of not less than twenty-five years nor more than thirty years is not eligible for parole, extended work release, as provided in Section 24-13-610, or supervised furlough, as provided in Section 24-13-710.

Initially, this language has no application to Respondent's conviction since he did not receive a "mandatory" or "mandatory minimum" term of imprisonment of twenty-five to thirty years. More importantly, this language (which, notably, was never mentioned or discussed in the *Bolin* case), does not repeal, implicitly or otherwise, the 85% provisions as applied to

Respondent's drug trafficking offense. The above language became effective on January 12, 1995. See S.C. Code Ann. § 44-53-370(e)(7) (Supp. 1995). At that time, there was no law requiring an inmate to serve an 85%, no-parole term, so the provision prohibiting parole for certain serious drug trafficking offenses had meaning. However, subsequently, on January 1, 1996, the 85% "no-parole" statutes were enacted. See S.C. Code Ann. § 24-13-100 and -150 (Supp. 1996). These broader statutes require 85%, no-parole terms for all sentences for class A, B, or C felonies or those exempt from classification but carrying a possible penalty of twenty years or more. See S.C. Code Ann. § 24-13-100 and -150 (Supp. 1996). Additionally, as a part of the January 1, 1996 enactments, S.C. Code Ann. § 24-21-560 was added, which requires that all inmates sentenced for 85%, "no parole" offenses must be released directly to a community supervision program under the supervision of the Department of Probation, Parole, and Pardon Services for a period not to exceed two years. See S.C. Code Ann. § 24-21-560(A) & (B). All of this subsequent legislation - including S.C. Code Ann. § 24-13-100, § 24-13-150, and § 24-21-560 - to the extent it conflicts with the language in S.C. Code Ann. § 44-53-370(e)(7), superseded -370(e)(7). See, e.g., *Williams v. Town of Hilton Head Island*, S.C., 311 S.C. 417, 421, 429 S.E.2d 802, 804 (1993) (in instances where it is not possible to harmonize two sections of a statute, a later legislation supersedes an earlier enactment); *State v. Brown*, 317 S.C. 55, 58, 451 S.E.2d 888, 891 (1994) ("More recent and specific legislation supersedes prior general law.").

For the reasons set forth above, Appellant contends that the ALC erred in finding that Respondent is eligible for parole, extended work release, and supervised furlough. Appellant