THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT

Administrative Law Judge H.W. Funderburk, Jr.

Case No. 2018-001293

RECEIVED
JUN 10 2019
SC Court of Appeals

Jakarta Deshon Young, #276572, Respondent,

v.

South Carolina Department of Corrections, Appellant.

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

Blake T. Williams
NELSON MULLINS RILEY & SCARBOROUGH LLP
1320 Main Street / 17th Floor
Post Office Box 11070 (29211-1070)
Columbia, SC 29201
(803) 799-2000

Susan B. Hackett
SOUTH CAROLINA COMMISSION ON INDIGENT DEFENSE
E-mail: shackett@sccid.sc.gov
P.O. Box 11589
Columbia, SC 29211-1589
(803) 734-1343

Attorneys for Jakarta Deshon Young, #276572

Counter-Statement of Issue on Appeal

Did the Administrative Law Court properly reverse the Department of Corrections' calculation of Respondent's sentence for violation of S.C. Code Ann. § 44-53-370(e)(2) where Respondent is eligible for parole, extended work release, or supervised furlough?

Counter-Statement of the Case

This matter is before the Court on appeal from the Administrative Law Court's review of an inmate grievance filed by Respondent Jakarta Deon Young ("Young"). Young was sentenced on August 25, 2016 to seven (7) years for the offense of trafficking 10-28 grams of cocaine, 2nd offense, in violation of S.C. Code Ann. § 44-53-370(e)(2)(a)(2). (Sentence Sheet, R. 11-13.)

Young filed a Step 1 grievance on June 28, 2017 challenging the South Carolina Department of Corrections' ("the Department") sentencing calculation for this offense.¹ (Step 1 Grievance, R. 9.) Young contended that the offense of trafficking 10-28 grams of cocaine, 2nd offense, is not a "no parole" offense, and therefore he should not be required to serve 85% of his sentence. (*Id.*) Young asserted that because he was not sentenced to a mandatory term of imprisonment of twenty-five years, a mandatory minimum of twenty-five years, or a mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of less than twenty-five years nor more than thirty years, he was eligible for parole, extended work release, or supervised furlough under S.C. Code Ann. § 44-53-370. (*Id.*)

The Warden denied Young's Step 1 Grievance, finding that the offense of trafficking in cocaine under S.C. Code Ann. § 44-53-370(e)(2) requires a "no parole (85%) sentence." (*Id.*)

Young then filed a Step 2 Grievance, reasserting the same argument from his Step 1 Grievance. The Warden also denied the Step 2 Grievance. (Step 2 Grievance, R. 8.)

On September 21, 2017, Young filed a Notice of Appeal to the Administrative Law Court. Young requested that the ALJ appoint counsel, but that motion was denied. After a full round of

¹ As the Administrative Law Judge ("ALJ") explained in his Order, Respondent referred to § 44-53-375(F) in his Step 1 Grievance, but cited only to § 44-53-370(e)(2) in his Step 2 Grievance, his Notice of Appeal to the Administrative Law Court ("ALC"), and in his merits briefing before the ALC. (*See Order*, R. 51.) Therefore, only § 44-53-370(e)(2) is at issue in this appeal.

merits briefing, the ALJ issued an Order on June 22, 2018 finding that the Department erred in calculating Young's sentence, and reversing and remanding. (Order, R. 51-55.) Specifically, the ALJ agreed with Young that the unenumerated paragraph following subpart (7) of § 44-53-370(e) supported that Young is eligible for parole, extended work release, or supervised furlough. (*Id.*) This appeal followed.²

Standard of Review

The decision of the Administrative Law Court should not be overturned unless it is unsupported by substantial evidence or controlled by some error of law. *Olson v. S.C. Dep't of Health and Env'tl. Control*, 379 S.C. 57, 63, 663 S.E.2d 497, 501 (Ct. App. 2008). According to statute, "[t]he review of the administrative law judge's order must be confined to the record." S.C. Code Ann. § 1-23-610(B). The reviewing court "may not substitute its judgment for the judgment of the administrative law judge as to the weight of the evidence on questions of fact." *Id.* The appellate court may affirm the decision or remand the case for further proceedings. *Id.* However, the reviewing court may reverse or modify the decision *only* if the substantive rights of the petitioner have been prejudiced because the decision is:

- (a) in violation of constitutional or statutory provisions; (b) in excess of the statutory authority of the agency; (c) made upon unlawful procedure; (d) affected by other error of law; (e) clearly erroneous in view of the reliable, probative, and substantial evidence on the whole record; or (f) arbitrary or capricious or characterized by abuse of discretion or clearly unwarranted exercise of discretion.

² After filing its appeal, the Department subsequently moved to remand the matter back to the ALC to correct a purported "error of law." The Department also filed a motion for supersedeas with the ALC, which the ALJ granted. Young—still acting *pro se* at this juncture—filed a motion to appoint counsel. This Court issued an Order on October 25, 2018 appointing the Office of Appellate Defense to represent Young on appeal "[d]ue to the unique circumstances of this case." Young's counsel then filed a return in opposition to the motion to remand. The Court issued an Order denying the motion to remand on February 24, 2019.

S.C. Code Ann. § 1-23-610(B)(a)-(f).

Although Appellant cited the applicable general standard of review for all administrative law decisions, Appellant did not identify specifically how its substantive rights had been prejudiced. Nevertheless, it appears Appellant contends the ALJ's decision is either "in violation of constitutional or statutory provisions" or is "affected by other error of law" in light of the Appellant's argument that the ALJ "improperly ruled" and "was incorrect in its interpretation" of the relevant statutory provisions. As will be discussed in greater detail *infra*, the ALJ committed no error of law and correctly interpreted the controlling statute to determine Young is eligible for parole, extended work release, or supervised furlough.

Argument

I. The ALJ correctly determined that Young is eligible for parole, extended work release, or supervised furlough.

This case turns on the meaning of the unenumerated paragraph following subpart (7) of S.C. Code Ann. § 44-53-370(e) and its interplay with Young's sentence for violation of S.C. Code Ann. § 44-53-370(e)(2)(a)(2). Young was convicted of trafficking 10-28 grams of cocaine, 2nd offense, pursuant to § 44-53-370(e)(2)(a)(2). That section provides that a person who knowingly sells or manufactures between 10 and 28 grams or more of cocaine or a mixture of cocaine (or conspires to do so) must be punished "for a second offense, a term of imprisonment of not less than five years nor more than thirty years, no part of which may be suspended nor probation granted, and a fine of fifty thousand dollars." *Id.*

This paragraph, however, must be read in conjunction with the unenumerated paragraph towards the end of subsection (e). That paragraph provides that:

A person convicted and sentenced under this subsection to a mandatory term of imprisonment of twenty-five years, a mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of twenty-five years, or a

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of not less than twenty-five years nor more than thirty years is *not* eligible for parole, extended work release, as provided in Section 24-13-610, or supervised furlough, as provided in Section 24-13-710. . . .

S.C. Code Ann. § 44-53-370(e) (emphasis added). The ALJ correctly found Respondent “was not convicted and sentenced to a mandatory term of imprisonment of twenty-five years, a mandatory minimum of twenty-five years, or a mandatory sentence between twenty-five and thirty years.” (Order, R. 55). Appellant concedes that Respondent “did not receive a ‘mandatory’ or ‘mandatory minimum’ term of imprisonment of twenty-five to thirty years.” (Br. of App. at 5.) Section 44-53-370(e) has been in place for several decades. The unenumerated paragraph was added by 1995 S.C. Act No. 7, Part I, § 17. That same year, the General Assembly also enacted the “85% no parole” provision in 1995. *See* 1995 S.C. Act No. 83, § 3.³ The Code defines a “no parole” offense as a Class A, B, or C felony or an offense exempt from classification subject to a maximum term of imprisonment of 20 years. *See* S.C. Code Ann. § 24-13-100. The 85% provision states that generally for a “no parole” offense, the inmate is not eligible for early release, discharge, or community supervision “until the inmate has served at least eighty-five percent of the actual term of imprisonment imposed.” *See* S.C. Code Ann. § 24-13-150.

This Court examined the meaning of the unenumerated paragraph in *State v. Taub*, 336 S.C. 310, 315-16, 519 S.E.2d 797, 800-01 (Ct. App. 1999). Importantly, this Court held that it *does not* preclude a person convicted of trafficking second offense the potential for receiving

³ The Department contends that the 85% no parole provision was “part of the January 1, 1996 enactments.” Although the provision had an effective date of January 1, 1996, it was approved by the Governor and made into law on June 7, 1995. *See* 1995 S.C. Act No. 83, § 62. Thus, it was passed during the same legislative session as the unenumerated paragraph in § 44-53-370(e). Since these provisions were adopted during the same legislative session, they “are to be read together as one act, and are not to be construed as inconsistent, if they can fairly and reasonably be construed otherwise.” *Locke v. Dill*, 131 S.C. 1, 126 S.E. 747, 748 (1925).

parole. *State v. Taub*, 336 S.C. 310, 315-16, 519 S.E.2d 797, 800-01 (Ct. App. 1999). This was despite the enactment of the 85% no parole provision. As the *Taub* court explained, by including this language the legislature assigned an “additional meaning” within subsection (e) to any sentence described as “mandatory” or as a “mandatory minimum.” *Id.* The unenumerated paragraph explains that under such a “mandatory” provision, the person sentenced is not eligible for parole, extended work release, or supervised furlough. However, the first and second offense provisions for many offenses, including trafficking cocaine, did not include such language. Thus, the *Taub* court reasoned that: “a person sentenced as a first or second offender, though subjected to a required minimum term of imprisonment, ***is not precluded under the statute from receiving parole, extended work release, or supervised furlough.***” *Id.* (emphasis added).

The General Assembly’s decision to leave the language of (e) essentially unchanged following *Taub* must mean something.⁴ As the Supreme Court has explained, “[t]he General Assembly is presumed to be aware of the common law” *State v. Bridgers*, 329 S.C. 11, 14, 495 S.E.2d 196, 197-98 (1997). Thus, “[t]here is a presumption that the legislature has knowledge of previous legislation as well as of ***judicial decisions construing that legislation when later statutes are enacted concerning related subjects.***” *State v. McKnight*, 352 S.C. 635, 648, 576 S.E.2d 168, 175 (2003) (emphasis added). Where the Legislature fails to alter a statute over a long period of time, “its inaction is evidence the Legislature agrees with th[e] Court’s interpretation.” *Wigfall v. Tideland Utilities, Inc.*, 354 S.C. 100, 111, 580 S.E.2d 100, 105 (2003). “[S]tatutes in derogation of the common law are to be strictly construed,” and “a statute restricting the common

⁴ The General Assembly has amended S.C. Code Ann. § 44-53-370(e) twice following the *Taub* decision, but has not altered the language of the unenumerated paragraph. See 2000 S.C. Act No. 355, § 8; 2002 S.C. Act No. 267, §§ 2, 3.

law will ‘not be extended beyond the clear intent of the legislature.’” *Grier v. AMISUB of S.C., Inc.*, 397 S.C. 532, 536, 725 S.E.2d 693, 696 (2012) (quoting *Crosby v. Glasscock Trucking Co.*, 340 S.C. 626, 628, 532 S.E.2d 856, 857 (2000)).

Therefore, under this principle, the General Assembly is presumed to have known about the *Taub* court’s interpretation of the unenumerated paragraph, and the Court should continue to apply its interpretation.

Here, Young was sentenced to seven years. Therefore, the unenumerated paragraph does not bar him from receiving parole, extended work release, or supervised furlough, just as the ALJ correctly determined. Moreover, in light of *Taub*, he is eligible for each of these. Therefore, the Court should affirm the ALC’s ruling.

II. At a minimum, the statute is ambiguous and should be construed in Young’s favor since it is penal in nature.

As detailed above, *Taub* supports that the ALJ correctly found that Young is eligible for parole. However, even if *Taub* were inapplicable, the unenumerated paragraph is, at the very least, ambiguous and should be construed in Young’s favor.

The statutory construction rules provide that if the “language is plain and unambiguous, and conveys a clear and definite meaning, there is no need to employ rules of statutory interpretation.” *State v. Dupree*, 354 S.C. 676, 693-94, 583 S.E.2d 437, 446-47 (Ct. App. 2003). However, where the language “gives rise to *doubt* or *uncertainty* as to legislative intent, the construing court *may search for that intent beyond the borders of the act itself.*” *Id.* (emphasis added). The statute must “receive practical, reasonable, and fair interpretation consonant with the purpose, design, and policy of lawmakers” and “be resolved in favor of a just, equitable, and beneficial operation of the law.” *Id.* The statute must be “read in a sense that harmonizes with its

subject matter and accords with its general purpose.” *Town of Mt. Pleasant v. Roberts*, 393 S.C. 332, 342-43, 713 S.E.2d 278, 283 (2011). Importantly, a penal statute is “**construed strictly against the State and in favor of the defendant.**” *Rainey v. State*, 307 S.C. 150, 151-52, 414 S.E.2d 131, 132 (1992) (emphasis added). Where there is “**any doubt**” about a statute’s scope, the interpreting court is “**required**” to resolve it in the defendant’s favor. *State v. Miles*, 421 S.C. 154, 164, 805 S.E.2d 204, 210 (Ct. App. 2017), *reh’g denied* (Oct. 19, 2017), *cert. denied* (Oct. 18, 2018) (emphasis added).

The South Carolina Supreme Court examined the unenumerated paragraph at the end of section 44-53-370(e) in *Kerr v. State*, 345 S.C. 183, 547 S.E.2d 494 (2001). Kerr was convicted of trafficking in cocaine in 1988. *Kerr*, 345 S.C. at 184, 547 S.E.2d at 495. Kerr was released on parole in 1993; however, he was arrested and reincarcerated in 1995 because the Parole Board “decided Kerr was parole ineligible under the trafficking statute.” *Id.* at 185, 547 S.E.2d at 495. Kerr was sentenced to mandatory term of twenty-five years imprisonment. *Id.* at 187, 547 S.E.2d at 496. At the time, the unenumerated paragraph provided that a person sentenced under the subsection to a mandatory minimum term of twenty-five years imprisonment was not eligible for parole. *Id.* “Construing this penal statute strictly against the state,” the Supreme Court held Kerr was parole eligible because “a ‘mandatory term’ of imprisonment is not the equivalent to a ‘mandatory minimum term’ of imprisonment.” *Id.* at 188, 547 S.E.2d at 497.

The unenumerated paragraph is ambiguous because it only addresses a negative (providing that certain minimum sentences mean an offender is not eligible for parole). The implication is that the remainder of offenses would be parole eligible (as *Taub* found), but the statute is ultimately silent on this point. At a minimum, this renders the provision ambiguous. Because this is a penal statute, it should therefore be construed against the department and resolved in Defendant’s favor.

Doing so would accord with the purpose of the Omnibus Crime Reduction and Sentencing Reform Act of 2010, which kept the unenumerated paragraph in § 44-53-370(e) in place. The legislative intent of that bill was expressly stated at the outset, providing that:

It is the intent of the General Assembly to preserve public safety, reduce crime, and *use correctional resources most effectively*. Currently, the South Carolina correctional system incarcerates people whose time in prison does not result in improved behavior and who often return to South Carolina communities and commit new crimes, or are returned to prison for violations of supervision requirements. It is, therefore, the purpose of this act to reduce recidivism, *provide fair and effective sentencing options, employ evidence-based practices for smarter use of correctional funding*, and improve public safety.

2010 S.C. Act No. 273, § 1 (emphasis added). As this Court has reasoned, one of the 2010 Omnibus Act's objectives "is to conserve taxpayer dollars by allowing earlier release dates for inmates convicted of less serious offenses." *Bolin v. S.C. Dep't of Corr.*, 415 S.C. 276, 284-85, 781 S.E.2d 914, 918 (Ct. App. 2016). By affirming the ALC's finding that Young is parole eligible, the Court would accomplish the purpose of this provision.

Conclusion

For all these reasons, the Court should affirm the well-reasoned decision of the ALC.